
 

 

CITY OF WIXOM 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

49045 PONTIAC TRAIL 

Tuesday, November 22, 2016 

 

After the reading of the mission and vision statements, this regular meeting of the Wixom Downtown 

Development Authority came to order at 7:31 a.m. with the following individuals in attendance: 

 

DDA MEMBERS: Chairperson Melanie Klebba-Cheney, Tom Berry, David Gavron, Mayor Kevin 

Hinkley, Jeff Keel, Anthony Moscone, Caleb Sheng 

ABSENT: Dino Grossi (excused), Marvin Poota (excused), Mark Weller (excused) 

STAFF: Stacey Banks (Assistant to the City Manager), Debra Barker (Economic & 

Community Development Director)), and Kathy Venegas (Recording Secretary) 

GUEST: Alex Stankovich - Oakland County Main Street, Lee Young - Oakland 

County Main Street 
 

Determination of a Quorum: 

A quorum of the Downtown Development Authority was present for this meeting. 

 

Approval of Agenda: 

MOTION and second by Board Members Keel and Berry to approve the November 22, 2016 Meeting 

Agenda. 

 VOTE:  MOTION CARRIED  

 

Public Comments: 
Chairperson Klebba-Cheney asked for introductions of guests.  Alex Stankovich from Oakland County 

introduced herself and Lee Young. 

 

Approval of October 25, 2016 DDA Regular Meeting Minutes: 

MOTION and second by Board Members Berry and Keel to approve the October 25, 2016 DDA Regular 

Meeting Minutes. 

 VOTE:  MOTION CARRIED  
 

Old Business: 

A. Action Items Review/Update 

Chairperson Klebba-Cheney said that everyone received a chart of the current action items that in 

the packet.  She said that this chart will be included in the packet every month and the Board will 

always go over it so that everyone knows what is and is not happening.   

 

Board Member Gavron gave an update on the Promotion Committee.  He thanked everyone who 

responded to him regarding the committee and said that they will meet November 30
th
 at 6:30 

p.m. at Buttercream Bakery.  Board Member Berry thanked Board Member Gavron for working 

with Ms. Hogerheide from Buttercream Bakery to organize the meeting.  Ms. Barker asked that 

Board Member Gavron give an update at the next DDA meeting about what was discussed at the 

Promotion Committee meeting. 

 

Ms. Barker said that regarding the DDA table at the Holiday Markt, there are enough volunteers 

for Friday, but Saturday is wide open for volunteers. She said there are three time slots available, 

12:00-2:30pm, 2:30-5:00pm and 5:00-7:30pm.  Board Member Berry volunteered to work the 

12:00-2:30 shift and said that he would pass around the sign-up sheet for the remaining shifts.  

Board Member Keel said that he will be at the event.  He said that he wouldn’t sign up since he 

would be working, but can cover if those time slots don’t get filled in. 

 

 

Approved 1/24/17 



Wixom Downtown Development Authority November 22, 2016 Page 2 

 

Board Member Sheng wondered what to do with items after the shift Friday night.  Ms. Barker 

wondered if other vendors left their goods on site and Ms. Venegas said that there is a Police 

Detail on site Friday night so any items can be left.  Ms. Barker said that Board Member Sheng 

should hold on to the money and she would collect it from him after the event. 

 

Chairperson Klebba-Cheney said that regarding the Social Media item on the Action Items list, it 

is currently on hold while the City finalizes its policies regarding Social Media. 

 

Chairperson Klebba-Cheney said that regarding the DDA Commitment Agreements, all Board 

Members present have submitted their agreement.  She said there are two Board Members that 

needed to be communicated with about it. 

 

B. Nomination of Vice-Chair 

Chairperson Klebba-Cheney explained that the Board never actually nominated Board Member 

Berry for Vice Chairperson at the last meeting and asked for a nomination.  Board Member Keel 

nominated Board Member Berry for the position of Vice Chairperson.  

MOTION and second by Board Members Keel and Sheng to approve the nomination of Board 

Member Tom Berry for the position of Vice Chairperson. 

 VOTE:  MOTION CARRIED  
 

Board Member Keel thanked Vice Chairperson Berry for his help and willingness to share the 

load. 

 

C. Chairperson – Derby Day and Block Party 

Ms. Barker said that she had a contract with the race company that will go to Council on 

December 13.  She said that Council Approval is the only thing to finalize before the DDA can 

move forward with the Derby Day race.  Board Member Keel wondered if it was settled as to 

which company will be bringing the race part of the event.  Ms. Barker said that Trivium was the 

only company available due to the short notice.  Board Member Moscone said that he will help 

with his connections.  Ms. Barker thought that packet pick up for the event could possibly be at 

Total Sports. 

 

Ms. Barker said that what is really needed is a Chairperson for the event.  She said that the 

Chairperson wouldn’t be doing all the work, he or she would be able to count on help from her 

but she really wanted to tag on a Wixom is Open for Business event along with the Derby Day.  

She said that she has developers and businesses that want to have open houses.  She said she 

really needs someone to take the reins and help organize this City-wide event. 

 

Chairperson Klebba-Cheney wondered if Ms. Barker could give an idea of specifically what she 

is looking for.  Ms. Barker said it needs to be someone who wants to do it and is eager to see the 

event succeed.  She didn’t think it was necessary that the person be a DDA Board Member. 

 

Ms. Barker said that the same is true for the Block party.  She said that a date needs to be 

determined and has to get put on the calendar.  She would like to reserve the pet adoption group 

which can be a rather large draw, but that needs to be done right away.  So someone needs to say 

they will be the Chairperson and help organize this event.  Board Member Berry thought that the 

Promotional Committee could take the lead with that.  Ms. Barker said that the Promotional 

Committee will be marketing the event, but they will be busy with branding the marketing the 

DDA and marketing other events as well. 

 

Chairperson Klebba-Cheney wondered what the time frame for having a Chairperson for these 

events would be.  Ms. Barker answered that the time frame is now.  Board Member Moscone 

wondered if someone from Total Sports could do it.  He thought that if given a couple of days he 

might be able to get someone.  Chairperson Klebba-Cheney asked Board Member Moscone to 



Wixom Downtown Development Authority November 22, 2016 Page 3 

 

check with his people to see who might be interested.  Board Member Moscone said that he had a 

number of thoughts about it.   

 

Chairperson Klebba-Cheney asked if this would be an event where Pontiac Trail would be shut 

down again.  Chairperson Keel asked if the idea for the Derby Day event would be to contain it at 

the end of the street.  Ms. Barker said that it could be anywhere, but that’s part of what needed to 

be decided. 

 

Vice Chairperson Berry thought that the DDA would want to work with the person who would be 

coordinating the route for the race.  Ms. Barker said that the race coordinators are not getting paid 

to run an event, only to coordinate the race including the route and the timing. 

 

Ms. Barker understood that with the holidays, it’s the worst time to ask for people to volunteer, 

but these events will come up very quickly and now is the time to really start nailing it down.  

Chairperson Klebba-Cheney agreed and volunteered to chair the Block Party.    

 

Board Member Keel wondered if date was set for the Block Parry.  Ms. Barker said there are a 

number of things to consider.  She said that the 3
rd

 week in September is always the Zoo’s pet 

adoption event so that weekend should be avoided.  She said that everyone should look at 

calendars and pick a Saturday in September. 

 

Board Member Keel thought it should be considered what other City events take place and that 

time, and he didn’t think there are any City events in September.   Board Member Berry said that 

the Zoo event is the major conflict so we should start with that. 

 

D. 2016-2017 Board Member Agreement 

Chairperson Klebba-Cheney noted that this item was already discussed under Action Items. 

 

New Business: 

A. Oakland County Tool Kit 

Ms. Barker turned the floor over to Lee Young along with Alex Stankovich from Oakland County 

Main Street and said they were here to give a presentation. 

 

Ms. Young introduced herself saying that she has been with Oakland County for three years and 

has become very interested in the Main Street program and helping revitalize Communities.  She 

said that they have created these Main Street Tool Kits as an introduction to Main Street program.  

They provide the tools that communities can use to implement Main Street into their daily work.  

She noted that the Wixom DDA already has a starting base and thought that the Tool Kit will 

provide some ways to keep moving forward.   

 

Ms. Young gave a slide show presentation explaining the Tool Kit.  She highlighted why the 

Main Street Program thinks Downtowns are important, how they help make Downtowns 

successful and how the Main Street Tool Kit can move the DDA forward.  Some of the tools 

suggested included evaluating strengths and weaknesses, and identifying strategies and action 

items to meet goals. 

 

Ms. Young thought that Wixom is doing a good job of making the area unique and interesting.  

She said that this DDA is doing a lot of things right and is ready for some next steps.  She offered 

to come to a future meeting to help with identifying some goals and priorities and developing the 

strategies and action items necessary to meet those goals.  Ms. Young asked if everyone could 

please look at the report and Tool Kit and complete the review sheet.  Chairperson Klebba-

Cheney asked that everyone have their feedback to Ms. Barker within a week. 

 

Ms. Young asked for questions from the Board. 



Wixom Downtown Development Authority November 22, 2016 Page 4 

 

 

Vice Chairperson Berry wondered how the DDA can recognize or reward volunteers to help 

retain them.  Ms. Young answered that any volunteer program should have recognition as a main 

part.  She said that if you don’t recognize the volunteers they will go away.  She said that some 

communities hold social gatherings such as a luncheon or coffee and donuts once a year as their 

volunteer recognition event.  Many times small awards are included as well. 

 

Ms. Barker said that the Mayor has something like that.  She thought that the DDA should get in 

touch with him.  Ms. Young thought it would be a good idea if the DDA could do a recognition 

event with the City because volunteers will be involved in both.  She said another way to retain 

volunteers is to make sure projects are tangible and feasible.  People will come back if they feel 

they’re making a difference. 

 

Ms. Young also said that Work Plans are very important because once you create the task and 

identify volunteers you can match those up.  Chairperson Klebba-Cheney agreed and thought that 

it’s important to know who our volunteers are to help match them with tasks and to be able to 

recognize them in and around the community. 

 

Ms. Young gave an example of the Friends of the Clint River Trail.  She said that anyone who 

comes to any event gets their name and email on a list and they are forever listed as a Friend of 

the Clint River Trail.  Those people then get a newsletter and that list is a resource for when 

volunteers are needed.  She suggested that when people sign up, it’s good to find out what they 

are interested in working on.  

 

Chairperson Klebba-Cheney wondered what the DDA’s next steps look like and if that is 

something that the entire group would work on.  Ms. Young answered that in other communities 

they typically go to the Board and ask what they want to see happen.  She said that it usually 

starts as discussion/brainstorming session and then strategies are identified and action items put 

into place.  Chairperson Klebba-Cheney thought that having Ms. Young back to a meeting as 

soon as possible would be necessary.  She asked if that could be done at the January 24
th
 meeting 

and Ms. Young agreed.  Chairperson Klebba-Cheney asked for the Board to come to the next 

meeting prepared to work on the next steps. 

 

Ms. Young and Ms. Stankovich said that at last year’s Main Event the Wixom DDA won an 

award for its Mission and Vision Statements.  They said that this year they will be asking 

communities to nominate the one best thing that they worked on.  The nomination form will be in 

the January packets and there will be an Award Ceremony in late spring for the winners. 

 

Board Member Moscone asked Ms. Young if there are other communities that have a draw such 

as Total Sports.  He asked if the representatives from Oakland County Main Street might have 

any insight about how to get people to turn right and visit Wixom’s Downtown when they’re 

visiting Total Sports.  Ms. Young said that signage is very important.  She said that Way Finding 

signage from Total Sports as well as marketing materials that promote downtown as a place to go 

are two keys to making that happen.  She pointed to Place Making as being important and said if 

businesses are not open or not providing what customers want, people will not visit downtown. 

 

Ms. Barker noted that Wixom Station has seen an increase in soccer families and have had to 

readjust in order to accommodate that. 

 

Board Member Moscone thought that a City clock tower at the entrance of Total Sports might be 

a good idea. 

 

Ms. Young gave an example of why signage is so important.  She said that in the case of the City 

of Holly, they have a National Cemetery only a couple of miles from the downtown area.  She 



Wixom Downtown Development Authority November 22, 2016 Page 5 

 

said that the thousands of people who come to visit the National Cemetery never make it to the 

Historic Downtown because there is no signage to point them there. 

 

B. 2017 Meeting Dates 

Chairperson Klebba-Cheney said that the 2017 dates are in the packet and noted that the meeting 

dates will continue to be monthly and not quarterly.  She said the Board needed a motion to 

approve the scheduled meeting dates. 

MOTION and second by Vice Chairperson Members Berry and Keel to approve the 2017 Meeting 

Schedule for the Wixom DDA. 

 VOTE:  MOTION CARRIED  

    

Information 

A. Business Forum Events – Chairperson Klebba-Cheney noted that Ms. Barker has listed the dates 

for the next four Business Forum meetings. 

B. Roles of Chair and Vice-Chair Persons – Chairperson Klebba-Cheney said that the specific roles 

for Chair and Vice-Chair were explained in the packet.  Vice Chairperson Berry said that Board 

Members should feel free to add or comment on those roles. 

C. Joint Board Meeting Dates – Ms. Barker said that the dates for Joint Meetings are approved so 

Board Members should add them to their calendars. 

D. City Events 

a. Chairperson Klebba-Cheney noted that Holiday Markt will be on December 2-3. 

b. Breakfast with Santa is scheduled for December 10. 

 

Public Comments:  

Ms. Banks wanted to give an update on the Forbidden Art exhibit.  She said that thanks to Josh Donnelly 

there is a flier that will be available to hand out to people at Holiday Markt.  She said that there is also a 

Forbidden Art sponsorship form that was created strictly for record keeping purposes and should not be 

used for solicitation. Ms. Banks read a statement from the Curator of Collections at The Polish Mission of 

the Orchard Lake Schools regarding fundraising.  “It is important to remember that the Auschwitz-

Birkenau Museum cannot be seen as a fundraising tool for any external institution.  Donations may occur 

throughout the project by its nature, but we must refrain from any outright appeals, especially in 

printed/digital media.” 

 

Ms. Banks said that this needs to be a word of mouth appeal for sponsorship.  She said that the 

sponsorship form is available online. 

 

Ms. Banks said that as far as the budget for the project, there is good news.  JJ Przewozniak from the 

Polish Mission said that some expenses could be In-Kind donations so that Two Men and a Truck will be 

donating the cost of moving the art.  She said that there will also be some new fliers designed that will be 

an In-Kind expense as well.   

 

Finally, Ms. Banks said that it was discovered that library is already covered for artwork so the $1000 that 

was listed in the budget for a rider on the City’s insurance won’t be necessary which means there is more 

cash available for the reception.  She said that brings the available amount for the reception to 

approximately $4000.  

 

Executive Director’s Comments: 
 

Board Members’ Comments: 
Vice Chairperson Berry said there is still one time slot left for Saturday at Holiday Markt to volunteer. 

 

Adjournment: 
This meeting of the Wixom Downtown Development Authority was motioned and adjourned at 8:39 a.m. 

 



Wixom Downtown Development Authority November 22, 2016 Page 6 

 

Kathleen A. Venegas 

Recording Secretary 

 


